
MINUTES

CITY OF CHEROKEE VILLAGE, ARKANSAS
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
6: 30 P. M., THURSDAY, MAY 15, 2014

CHEROKEE VILLAGE CITY HALL
meetings are video recorded)

Mayor Lloyd Hefley called the regular meeting of the City Council to order at 6: 30 p. m. on,
Thursday, May 15, 2014.   He led the Pledge of Allegiance followed by a moment of silent
prayer.

Roll was called by Clerk Lana Hamilton.  Present were Jerry Adams, Chuck McMahon, Verna
Mae Newman, Linda O' Neal, Pamela Rowland, Tom Thone, Mayor Hefley and City Attorney
Jon Abele; absent were Bill Circle & Les Covington.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:   Rowland added Item # 5, Temporary Shelter in the event of
an emergency, under New Business.   Newman stated James Street should be added to the
agenda where appropriate;  Mayor Hefley stated he would be added after correspondence.
Clerk Hamilton stated Pamela Rowland presented a letter to be added under correspondence.
Newman moved to approve the agenda with corrections, seconded by Rowland and passed
unanimously.

c
PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS:  ( limit 3 minutes per person)

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:  Newman moved to approve the April 17,  2014 council
minutes,  seconded by McMahon and passed unanimously.

CORRESPONDENCE:
1 - A thank you letter to Mayor Hefley from Kim Whitten, Director of Off-Campus Operations,

Ash Flat - Clerk Hamilton read the thank you card.
2 - Letter addressed to Cherokee Village City Council Members from, Ted Harris - Hamilton

read the letter regarding the increased pet fees; Newman stated Glenn Harris should be given
a copy of the letter to respond to Mr. Harris.

James Mack Street provided council with a packet on the WRMC 24 hour emergency facility.
Street gave a brief overview of services to be offered.  Street stated June 23rd is the tentative
opening date of the facility with an Open House scheduled for June 17th.

MAYOR' S REPORT:

FINANCIAL REPORT:    Newman moved to approve the financials for audit,  seconded by
Rowland and passed unanimously.

Ce

1



I

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:

FIRE:  ( report on file)

POLICE:   ( report on file) - Chief Crook announced he had lost an officer due to a career
change; Crook stated the officer left to go into insurance sales.   Crook introduced officer,
Debra Bailey to council.  Crook stated Bailey comes to us as a seasoned officer with 7 years
experience.

ANIMAL CONTROL:  ( report on file)

STREET:  ( report on file)  Adams inquired about the asphalt overlay discussed in the Street
Dept. report and asked what road this was referring to;   John Kyllo stated he was currently
obtaining costs and comparing hot and cold mix for longevity of road life and there is no target
road at present.  Newman inquired with John Kyllo about his new position; Kyllo stated he was
interviewing for a replacement mechanic due to Mr. Bettis' retirement.  Kyllo also stated repairs

were complete at Flathead Bridge and he had been meeting with FEMA regarding roads that
had been washed out and needed repairs.  Thone asked Kyllo if he would be proposing any
budget changes at the upcoming budget meeting; Kyllo stated he was still reviewing budget
numbers.

COMMUNITY SERVICE:  ( report on file)

DISTRICT COURT:  ( report on file)

PLANNING & ZONING:

Adams asked for an update on the floodplain survey; Bickle stated the paperwork came back a
couple of weeks ago; Bickle stated Liz Keel is working on getting letters mailed out to residents
and stated there were 41 lots total in the floodplain.

PERMIT COMPARISONS:  ( report on file)

CODE ENFORCEMENT:  ( report on file)

RESTORATION:   Bickle stated 27 Iroquois Circle was complete with the assistance of the
Street Dept.  Bickle stated a lien would be put on the house next month.  O'Neal asked if the
abandoned house at 14 Saskatchewan could be inspected; Bickle stated it could be.  Newman

asked about other issues; Bickle stated he was working with an insurance company to receive
monies promised on one property that has been cleaned up.  Bickle stated his funds would be

running low and said would be asking for additional money in a few months.

A & P COMMISSION REPORT:    Pat Clary stated work was continuing on the  'Discover
Cherokee Village' website and hoped the site would be complete by July 4th.  Clary stated the
A&P was also working on a  ' rack card' which highlights Cherokee Village and should be
available by July 4th as well.   Clary stated the A&P was moving forward with the 60th Year
Anniversary and the commission was planning on holding the celebration on Memorial Day
weekend 2015.   Clary stated the A&P would be submitting a request to council to appoint
Alderman Pamela Rowland to oversee the 60th Anniversary Homecoming.   Clary stated a
small ad had been purchased thru Northeast Electric Coop for inclusion in the June issue of
their magazine because of its high reach to people in the Northeast Arkansas area.   Thone

inquired about the appointment of Jimmy Chandler to the A& P who will be retiring in August;
Clary stated they will be looking for a replacement for his position.

ge:
COMMITTEES:

PERSONNEL:

2



SAFETY:

WEBSITE & GRANT:  Newman asked for an update on grants; Carmen Evance stated P& P
mily would be doing grant some research.    Evance stated volunteers are welcome on the

Web/Grant committee.   McMahon stated additional committee members would be helpful in
grant research and stated Clary was good with writing grants.  Adams asked for an update on
the Nature Trail; Harris stated he would be closing out the grant by June 20th.   Harris also

stated the trail itself was complete but still needed signage and stated the City had received a
10, 000 grant for a restroom.  Harris stated there would be a ribbon cutting in approximately 3

weeks.   Harris stated a $ 1, 000 grant had been received for landscaping and a $ 2, 500 grant
had been applied for with Wal- Mart for benches.  Adams stated donations were welcome from
individuals, groups and organizations for benches, garbage receptacles, etc.  Newman asked if

the trail was marked for bicycles; Harris stated bicycles are allowed but the path is not marked
at this time.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
1  - ORDINANCE NO.  2014-_:   AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE NO.  1999-4,

PROVIDING FOR LICENSING AND ANIMAL CONTROL WITH CHEROKEE VILLAGE,
ARKANSAS;  ESTABLISHING PENALTIES FOR THE VIOLATION THEREOF;  AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES, FIRST READ - Adams asked Harris about the changes to the ordinance
and stated he,  as well as other council members,  had received numerous calls about the
ordinance.  Adams stated the issue may need to be postponed until next month to obtain more
information;  Harris concurred with Adams and made a request to council to not read the
ordinance for the second reading and offered the history behind the changes to the ordinance.
Harris stated Judge Johnson had asked for a revision to include, " at the court's discretion

Mr vicious animals can be destroyed".   Harris stated unnecessary verbiage was also removed,
but an increase in fees was not included.   Harris stated raising the license fee would be
counter-productive and stated no other department within the City supports itself.  Harris also
stated he would discuss the recently received correspondence with Phil Caves.  After lengthy
discussion, Newman moved to hold the reading of the ordinance until June council, seconded
by Rowland and passing unanimously.  Thone inquired about raising the cost of fines; Harris
stated the City cannot charge more than the State charges.   Harris stated Animal Control

revenues would increase if they had a 24 hour/week, part-time officer for patrolling only.

NEW BUSINESS:

1 — A PROCLAMATION FOR NATIONAL KIDS TO PARKS DAY, SATURDAY, MAY 17, 2014
Hamilton read the proclamation for National Kids to Parks Day.   Mayor Hefley called for a

vote on the proclamation; the proclamation passed unanimously.
2 — AMENDMENT NO. 2014-_:  AN AMENDMENT TO THE CHEROKEE VILLAGE ZONING
CODE ORDINANCE 99- 2 AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. # 1 - Hamilton read the amendment
to Ordinance 99- 2, # 1.  Newman moved to approve, seconded by Adams.  A roll call vote was

taken; there were 6 yeas, passing the amendment unanimously.
3 — AMENDMENT NO. 2014-_:  AN AMENDMENT TO THE CHEROKEE VILLAGE ZONING
CODE ORDINANCE 99-2 AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. # 2 - Hamilton read the amendment
to Ordinance 99-2, # 2.  Newman moved to approve, seconded by Adams.  A roll call vote was

taken; there were 6 yeas, passing the amendment unanimously.

3



4 — TEMPORARY SPECIAL USE PERMIT for the Spring River Farmers Market from May 24,
Iiiro

2014 - August 30,  2014 -  Newman moved to approve the temporary special use permit,
seconded by Rowland and passed unanimously.   Thone inquired who was in charge ofq g the
market; Rowland & Adams stated Jonathan Rhodes was the manager for the market.
5 — Temporary Shelter- Rowland stated consideration needed to be given to opening City Hall
as a temporary shelter during a tornado.  Rowland stated she received many calls during the
recent storm from concerned citizens not knowing where to go in an emergency.   Rowland
proposed City Hall be used during the remainder of the tornado season and just asked for the
issue to be discussed further by council.  Peter Martin stated grants are available for shelters;
Martin stated Hardy received one.   Newman stated local churches have rooms available for
shelter.

COMMENTS OF CITY RELATED ITEMS:   ( limit 3 minutes per person)   Peter Martin stated
metal carports are not unsafe and council is voting on aesthetics.   Martin stated the carports
do not decrease property values.

Pat Clary asked if the City had an emergency plan;  Chief Pendarvis stated Baseheart is
available as well as several churches.   Chief Crook stated he,  Pendarvis and John Kyllo
recently went thru a class and an action plan is being put into place.   Rowland stated it was
important to get the information to the citizens.

ANNOUNCEMENTS:   Mayor Hefley stated a budget review meeting would be held on May
22nd at 1 p. m. at City Hall.

Co ADJOURNMENT:   Newman moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:45 p. m., seconded by Adams
and passed unanimously.

NOTE:  Minutes are prepared by Kathi Blackwell, Assistant to Clerk/Treasurer Lana Hamilton
with Hamilton' s approval)

DATE:       ( 40/ 02- 6    )

APPROVED:      

yd Hefl:' , Mayor

ATTES

Lana Hamilton, City Clerk/Treasurer

4


